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The following answers are based on California Energy Commission (CEC) staff’s interpretation of the questions received. It is the Applicant’s responsibility to review the purpose of the solicitation and to determine whether or not their proposed project is eligible for funding by reviewing the Eligibility Requirements within the solicitation. The CEC cannot give advice as to whether or not a particular project is eligible for funding, because not all proposal details are known.

Administrative

Q1: 	If there are no sites specified, what is the appropriate way to complete 	the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) form?
A1: 	Please fill out all the parts that you can. At the very least you should know the location of where the block grant will be administered. You can also explain, if it is accurate, how administering the block grant is either (1) not a project for purposes of CEQA or (2) will meet one or more of the exemptions. For example, you might want to consult with your legal counsel to determine if 14 CCR 15262 might apply. In general, the exemption applies to feasibility studies or planning activities for possible future actions that will need to be approved. Ultimately, the resulting incentive projects will in some way in the future have to either be permitted or fit within existing use requirements – a future decision by the appropriate government entity.
Q2: 	Should the Block Grant Applicant’s Past Performance be included in part of the Project Narrative as well as detailed in Attachment 10?

A2: 	No, the Block Grant Applicant should respond to the Block Grant Applicant’s Past Performance criterion in Attachment 10 and not the Project Narrative. Multiple Attachment 10 forms may be submitted and will not count towards the page limitations. Attachment 10 information will be used for screening and scored under the Evaluation Criteria. Please see Addendum 1 for modifications related to the past performance screening and scoring criteria.

Q3: 	Is it correct that CEQA and Local Health Impacts Information forms will be required of all Block Grant Applicants to the solicitation?

A3: 	Yes, all Block Grant Applicants must submit completed CEQA and Local Health Impacts Information forms. Please refer to Section III.D.10 CEQA Worksheet and Section III.D.11 Local Health Impacts Information Form. Block Grant Applicants should work with their legal counsel to complete the forms as they apply to the proposed project. 

Q4: 	How will the CEC approach CEQA for incentive project Applicants seeking incentive funding? As part of this application, we will complete the CEQA forms as required to administer the block grant but want to assess our responsibility for the completion of CEQA activities by incentive project Applicants.

A4:	It is the incentive project Applicant’s responsibility that they design and complete their construction project in accordance with all federal, state, and local laws/ordinances, including CEQA. Incentivized projects will have to in some way be approved by an appropriate government entity with jurisdiction over the project. The Block Grant Recipient will work with Incentive Recipient to ensure the appropriate actions are taken to comply with CEQA.
Q5: 	Are the permits anticipated in Task 1.7 of the Scope of Work for project administration or does the responsibility for acquiring and documenting permits for the installation of the charging installations flow up to the project administrator?

A5:	The permits anticipated in Task 1.7 of the Scope of Work is for project administration. The Block Grant Recipient will be required to collect a permit from every incentive project Applicant receiving a rebate. The submission of the permit by the incentive project Applicant receiving an incentive will be a required document that must be included as part of accepting an incentive and will be part of the overall design of the block grant project resulting from this solicitation.

Q6: 	Does the hypothetical assignment count towards the 20-page limit?

A6: 	Yes, the hypothetical assignment counts towards the 20-page limit and the response is limited to one page.

Q7:	Can the hypothetical question be about hydrogen technologies?

A7:	No. The question involves chargers for medium- and heavy-duty (MD/HD) Class 3-8 electric vehicles (EVs). 

Q8:	In the hypothetical assignment can you clarify that the assignment is to describe the methodology and approach to developing and implementing the incentive project for two specific use cases:
· Public fleets operating Class 3-8 vehicles in Fresno and Tulare counties.
· MD/HD EVs traveling on freeways between Kings County and the surrounding areas.

A8:	The hypothetical assignment is to describe the methodology and approach to developing and implementing the incentive project targeting public fleets operating Class 3-8 vehicles traveling through Fresno and Tulare counties and in tribal lands in Kings County for charger installations to support MD/HD EVs traveling on freeways between Kings County and the surrounding areas.

Q9: 	Can a Block Grant Applicant propose more than one incentive project to develop and administer with the proposed funds or would the CEC prefer a single project with multiple potential Incentive Recipients and funding types?

A9: 	In accordance with the funding solicitation, Block Grant Applicants may only submit one application for funding. Within this application, the Block Grant Applicant is able to propose multiple incentive projects to develop and administer the proposed funds. The intent of this solicitation is to select a Block Grant Applicant to design and implement a comprehensive and effective Block Grant to ensure effective disbursement of funds. Please refer to Section II.B.

Funding

Q10: 	Is the maximum award for administrative costs currently $1.4 million? That is seven percent of the $20 million currently available. Should an Applicant establish their budget proposals based upon a seven percent administrative fee against the $20 million currently available or against the $50 million envisioned in the future?

A10: 	Up to seven percent, or $1.4 million, of the $20 million dollars currently available can be budgeted for administrative expenses. Block Grant Applicants should base their budget proposals and administrative cost percentages against the total amount currently available for the Block Grant project, which is $20 million. If additional funds are allocated to the Block Grant, the Block Grant Recipient will be required to adhere to the administrative cost percentage(s) proposed in the Applicant’s proposal. Please refer to Section I.F. Availability of Funds, and Section I.G. Maximum Award Amounts for additional information.

Q11: 	Could the Block Grant Recipient use administrative funds to provide Block Grant Applicants with technical assistance?

A11: 	Yes, the Block Grant Recipient can budget administrative funds to provide Block Grant Applicants with technical assistance. Up to seven percent of funds are available under the resulting agreement for administrative costs.

Q12: 	How many projects will be awarded under this solicitation? What is the maximum award amount for one project?

A12: 	The intent of this solicitation is to seek a Block Grant Recipient to design and implement various MD/HD zero-emission vehicle refueling infrastructure incentive projects throughout California. The CEC expects to recommend funding for only one awardee selected through this Grant Funding Opportunity (GFO). The Block Grant Recipient awarded through this solicitation will be responsible for identifying MD/HD zero-emission vehicle refueling infrastructure incentive projects and implementing those projects for infrastructure installation. The amount of funding per incentive project will depend on how the overall block grant project is designed. All incentive projects are subject to review and approval by the CEC.

Q13: 	If an incentive project Applicant’s deployment timeline exceeds the liquidation deadline of eligible funding, would that incentive project Applicant’s application be cancelled, or could it roll over into the subsequent funding cycle?

A13:	If an incentive project Applicant’s deployment timeline exceeds the liquidation deadline of eligible funding, then it would be considered an ineligible infrastructure incentive project. While the intent of this solicitation is to select a Block Grant Recipient to design and implement various MD/HD infrastructure incentive projects in CA, all MD/HD infrastructure incentive projects are subject to the review and approval by the CEC.

Q14: 	Is there a requirement for prioritizing funding projects in Disadvantaged Communities (DACs)?

A14:	No. Block Grant Applicants are not expected to develop individual incentive projects, so there is no requirement for prioritizing funding projects in DACs. However, the Block Grant Applicant should describe how the block grant, once implemented, will incorporate, address, identify and maximize project benefits for DACs, low-income communities, priority populations, and/or tribal lands. Please refer to Section III.D.3.c.12 of the Solicitation Manual. Individual incentive projects developed under the resulting block grant agreement may include minimum DAC requirements.
Q15: 	Would community needs assessments or facility assessments be eligible for funding under the block grant? For instance, could a set-aside be made for $1,000,000 to fund 20 community needs assessments or facility assessments that enhance the ability for communities to provide feedback on future MD/HD infrastructure projects? If so, would funding for community needs assessments be separate from the administrative set-aside?

A15:	Yes, a community needs assessment and/or a facility assessment would be eligible for funding under the block grant. If a community needs assessment or facility assessment is determined to be warranted, then it would count towards the administrative costs budgeted by the Block Grant Recipient. 

Applicant Requirements

Q16: 	Would applying for other CEC funding opportunities (like blueprint funding) or having a current contract with the CEC preclude participation in this solicitation?

A16: 	No, applying for other CEC grant funding opportunities or having a grant agreement or contract with the CEC would not preclude participation in GFO-20-603. However, the awardee of GFO-20-603 cannot participate as an incentive project Applicant in a resulting incentive project under the awarded block grant to receive incentive project funding.

Q17: 	Can an entity apply for the block grant and be a part of the Blueprint funding project team? If awarded the block grant, can members of the Blueprint project team apply for block grant project funding for incentive projects?

A17: 	The CEC is seeking a Block Grant Recipient that can implement incentive projects in a fair and impartial manner. The Block Grant Recipient will be required to avoid conflicts of interest whether actual or perceived. To the extent that appropriate safeguards and firewalls are in place to ensure potential incentive project Applicants do not receive preferential treatment. Block Grant Applicants should address in their application how they plan to mitigate actual or perceived conflicts of interest. 

If the Blueprint project team consists of multiple partners, and the project partners (not including the Block Grant Recipient) apply for incentive project funding and no conflicts of interest exist, then the project partners may be eligible for block grant incentive project funding. Block Grant Recipients are not eligible for incentive project funding provided under the block grant.

Q18: 	Could an entity be disqualified from competing for projects under the Block Grant if it provided a match contribution to a Block Grant Applicant’s proposal that could be used to support infrastructure projects for a certain fueling type?

A18: 	While there is no required match share for this grant funding opportunity, an entity that provides a match contribution for the Block Grant Applicant’s block grant application may have an actual or perceived conflict of interest. Block Grant Applicants should address in their application for funding how actual or perceived conflicts of interest will be avoided or effectively mitigated.

Project Requirements

Q19: 	Are there any provisions or restrictions to utilizing subcontractors? 

A19: 	Requirements for subcontractors are contained in the: 1) solicitation, 2) Scope of Work, and 3) terms and conditions. Please note that a minimum of 93% of the block grant funds received must be used for actual project incentives. The 7% cap on administrative costs applies to the Block Grant Recipient and all subcontractors. 

A separate set of complete budget forms, including the full set of worksheets, is required for subcontracts containing $100,000 or more of CEC funds; or 25 percent of CEC funds requested, whichever is less. Please refer to Section III.D.6 Budget Forms for additional information on the budget forms. 

Q20: 	Under a defined infrastructure incentive project, could a fleet that has committed to procuring electric/hydrogen vehicles seek funding to support an infrastructure needs/site assessment to help evaluate appropriate charging/refueling needs?

A20: 	The details of the block grant will be dependent on the awardee and how the project is designed. The intent of this solicitation is to select a Block Grant Recipient to design and implement MD/HD infrastructure incentive projects in California.

Q21: 	How do you identify not-for-profit "technology" entity? Does the not-for-profit entity have to do the business in the technology field (e.g. national lab is a not-for-profit "technology" entity, but public high school is not a not-for-profit "technology" entity), in order to be eligible for applying to this grant?

A21: 	A not-for-profit technology entity is defined as an entity filing as and operating under the Internal Revenue Service’s requirements of a 501(c)(3) corporation.  The Applicant should explain how they are organized to advance transportation technologies. Please refer to Section II.A Applicant Requirements.

Q22: 	The Scope of Work states that, “The goal of this Agreement is to provide a block grant to a not-for-profit technology entity to implement MD/HD EV charging or hydrogen refueling infrastructure incentive projects throughout California.” Can you clarify whether “implementing projects” is providing incentives and necessary guidance and assistance to project developers who are responsible for the design, construction, and commissioning of infrastructure? Additionally, can you clarify whether a “project” in this case is a station or if the “project” is the incentive projects?

A22:	The Scope of Work is intended for the Block Grant Recipient awarded from this solicitation. Part of implementing projects will be to provide incentives and necessary guidance and assistance to project developers who are responsible for the design, construction, and commissioning of infrastructure. A “project” under this solicitation is the MD/HD zero-emission vehicle refueling infrastructure incentive projects developed under the funding agreement resulting from this solicitation. Please refer to Section II.B.

Q23: 	Tasks 3 and 4 of the Scope of Work suggest that the Block Grant Recipient develop an outreach and advertisement plan for each approved infrastructure incentive project and then conduct the outreach. If this advertisement and outreach is to occur after the project selection how does that comply with Task 5, which calls on the engagement of Community Based Organization’s community leaders, etc. in the planning process of the incentive process? Is the expectation that projects will be selected without having any community engagement conducted prior to their submission? Is the expectation that the Applicant to the grant solicitation is not responsible for outreach and community engagement on their project? Is the goal to engage a community and potentially affected residents after the project selection?

A23: 	Block Grant Applicants will need to describe their experience working with and conducting outreach activities with community-based organizations, etc., in their application project narrative. Once an agreement is executed between the CEC and the Block Grant Recipient, outreach and community engagement can begin as the incentive projects are being designed. The Block Grant Recipient will be responsible for conducting outreach to community leaders, community-based organizations, California Native American tribes, and potentially affected local residents to raise awareness of the designed projects as well as working with them on planning implementation of potential projects. Please refer to Section II.B Project Requirements.
Q24: 	Where does the CEC see the need for community needs assessment?

A24: 	The Block Grant Recipient will engage with community-based organizations in the planning process of incentive projects and education on zero-emission vehicle transportation and will determine whether a community needs assessment is needed and develop a scope. Please refer to Section II.B.5 Project Requirements.

Q25: 	Should an incentive project Applicant demonstrate a commitment/proof of purchase/purchase order of vehicles/equipment to be eligible for incentive funding?

A25: 	The intent of this solicitation is to seek a Block Grant Recipient to design and implement MD/HD infrastructure incentive projects throughout California. It will be up to the Block Grant Recipient to design the project and determine requirements from incentive project Applicants applying for infrastructure incentives.

Q26: 	Is the CEC envisioning this funding to only be made available for private fueling stations? Or, are public or shared-use charging/fueling stations eligible for funding? 

A26: 	Currently, there are no requirements for the type of projects that are eligible for incentive funding. The awardee of this solicitation will be responsible for identifying MD/HD zero-emission vehicle refueling infrastructure incentive projects and eligibility requirements. Please refer to Section II.B. 

Q27: 	Could an incentive project Applicant apply for both hydrogen refueling and EV charging incentives in one incentive application?

A27:	The Block Grant Recipient will be responsible for identifying eligible incentive projects to be funded and the requirements needed by potential incentive project Applicants. The intent of the current GFO is to select a Block Grant Recipient to design and implement a block grant for MD/HD infrastructure incentive projects. Incentive projects developed and implemented may include EV charging, hydrogen refueling, or both.

Other

Q28: 	How many individuals attended the pre-application workshop?

A28: 	There were 102 attendees. The attendee list was published to the CEC’s website after the pre-application workshop.

Q29: 	I am looking for information regarding previously funded projects for GFO solicitation number GFO-16-603. Can you direct me to where I can find this information on the website or how it can be obtained?

[bookmark: _GoBack]A29: 	If an Applicant is seeking to reference previous applications to a prior solicitation, please send a request to Kevyn.Piper@energy.ca.gov, and a file transfer link for GFO-16-603 for CALeVIP block grant applications will be provided.
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